
 

 

Service Director – Legal, Governance and 
 

Commissioning 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 
Governance and Commissioning 
 

PO Box 1720  
 

Huddersfield 
 

 

HD1 9EL 
 

Tel: 01484 221000  
 

Please ask for: Richard Dunne 
 

Email: richard.dunne@kirklees.gov.uk 
 

Friday 26 August 2022 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
Dear Member 
 

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel 
 

The Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel will meet in the Council 
Chamber - Town Hall, Huddersfield at 2.00 pm on Tuesday 6 September 
2022. 
 
This meeting will be webcast live and will be available to view via the Council’s website. 
 
The items which will be discussed are described in the agenda and there are reports 
attached which give more details. 
 
 

 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 

Service Director – Legal, Governance and Commissioning 
 
 
Kirklees Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic 
processes. Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting should 
inform the Chair/Clerk of their intentions prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

The Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel members are:- 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Member 
Councillor Jackie Ramsay (Chair) 
Councillor Lesley Warner 
Councillor Jo Lawson 
Councillor Bill Armer 
Councillor Vivien Lees-Hamilton 
Councillor Alison Munro 
Helen Clay (Co-Optee) 
Kim Taylor (Co-Optee) 
 



 

 

 

Agenda 
Reports or Explanatory Notes Attached 

 

 
  Pages 

 

1:   Minutes of previous meeting 
 
To approve the Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 27 July 
2022. 
 

 
 

1 - 8 

2:   Interests 
 
The Councillors will be asked to say if there are any items on the 
Agenda in which they have disclosable pecuniary interests, which 
would prevent them from participating in any discussion of the items 
or participating in any vote upon the items, or any other interests. 
 

 
 

9 - 10 

3:   Admission of the public 
 
Most debates take place in public. This only changes when there is a 
need to consider certain issues, for instance, commercially sensitive 
information or details concerning an individual. You will be told at 
this point whether there are any items on the Agenda which are to 
be discussed in private. 
 

 
 

 

4:   Deputations/Petitions 
 
The Committee will receive any petitions and hear any deputations 
from members of the public. A deputation is where up to five people 
can attend the meeting and make a presentation on some particular 
issue of concern. A member of the public can also hand in a petition 
at the meeting but that petition should relate to something on which 
the body has powers and responsibilities. 
 
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 (2), Members of the 
Public should provide at least 24 hours’ notice of presenting a 
deputation. 
 

 
 
 
 

 



 

 

5:   Public Question Time 
 
The meeting will hear any questions from the general public. 
 

 
 

 

6:   Maternity Services in Kirklees 
 
Representatives from Calderdale and Huddersfield NHS Foundation 
Trust, Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust and the West Yorkshire 
Local Maternity System will be in attendance to present an update 
on the provision of maternity services in Kirklees. 
 
Contact: Richard Dunne, Principal Governance Officer: 01484 
221000 
 
 

 
 

11 - 18 

7:   Unplanned Care 
 
Representatives from organisations across the Kirklees health and 
adult social care system will be in attendance to outline the work that 
is being done to manage expected and unexpected increases in 
demand and deal with capacity issues. 
 
Contact: Richard Dunne, Principal Governance Officer: 01484 
221000 
 

 
 

19 - 22 

8:   Work Programme 2022/23 
 
The Panel will review its work programme for 2022/23 and consider 
its forward agenda plan. 
 
Contact: Richard Dunne Principal Governance Officer: 01484 
221000. 
 

 
 

23 - 30 

 
 



 

1 
 

Contact Officer: Richard Dunne  
 

KIRKLEES COUNCIL 
 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

Wednesday 27th July 2022 
 
Present: Councillor Jackie Ramsay (Chair) 
 Councillor Lesley Warner 

Councillor Jo Lawson 
Councillor Bill Armer 
Councillor Alison Munro 

  
Co-optees Helen Clay 

Kim Taylor 
  
In attendance: Stacey Appleyard – Director, Healthwatch Kirklees 

Michelle Cross – Service Director – Adults and Health, 
Kirklees Council  
Christina McCool – Head of Learning Disability and 
Mental Health, Kirklees Council 
Carol McKenna – West Yorkshire Integrated Care Board 
Accountable Officer - Kirklees Health and Care 
Partnership 
Melissa Harvey – General Manager for Community 
Services, South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust (SWYPFT) 
Chris Lennox – Director of Services, SWYPFT 
Darryl Thompson – Chief Nurse and Director of Quality 
and Professions, SWYPFT 
 

Observers:  Councillor Liz Smaje 
   

 
1 Minutes of previous meeting 

The minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2022 were approved as a correct 
record. 
 

2 Interests 
Cllr Lesley Warner declared an interest as a member of the Calderdale and  
Huddersfield NHS Foundation Trust Council of Governors. 
 

3 Admission of the public 
All items were taken in public session. 
 

4 Deputations/Petitions 
No deputations or petitions were received. 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel -  27 July 2022 
 

2 
 

5 Public Question Time 
No questions were asked. 
 

6 Mental Health Services 
The Panel welcomed representatives from South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust (SWYPFT) and Kirklees Council to the meeting. 
 
Ms Cross informed the Panel that the Local Authority and SWYPFT had invested 
heavily in making sure that their relationship was strong following a national 
programme of work that aimed to understand the benefits of social workers in 
integrated teams particularly in mental health services. 
 
Ms Cross outlined details of a comprehensive development plan that had been 
introduced across all mental health teams and a training programme that had been 
rolled out for all health and social care professionals. 
 
Ms Cross informed the Panel of the work that had taken place across the Kirklees, 
Calderdale and Wakefield footprint that included sharing of good practice. 
 
Ms Cross explained that the Council had invested heavily in management across 
the integrated services with the aim of strengthening the partnership working. 
 
Ms Cross stated that the Council and SWYPFT had brought together the skills and 
expertise of the workforce to enhance the quality and consistency of services. 
 
Ms Cross provided the Panel with a detailed overview of the work that had taken 
place to improve the quality of safeguarding self-neglect pathways and the focus on 
making sure that the workforce understood their responsibilities. 
 
Ms Lennox informed the Panel of the intense pressures that had been experienced 
in the acute pathway and the increased levels of complexity that people who had to 
come into hospital had been experiencing. 
 
Ms Lennox explained that this increase in complexity was also being experienced 
nationally and was having an impact on the occupancy levels of the Trust’s beds 
which had resulted in the need to use out of area beds. 
 
Ms Lennox informed the Panel that the Trust was still having to use Covid infection 
and prevention measures on its wards which included the requirement to isolate 
people when they were first admitted. 
 
Ms Lennox outlined details of the workforce challenges; the innovation that was 
being deployed to tackle the issue; and the focus that was being given to the 
retention and recruitment of staff. 
 
Ms Lennox informed the Panel of the Trust’s home based treatments teams who 
provided care in the community for people who would otherwise have to be in 
hospital. 
 

Page 2



Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel -  27 July 2022 
 

3 
 

Ms Lennox explained that the Trust aimed to keep out of area placements to a 
minimum and that it adopted continuity of care principles that aimed to maintain 
contact with people and reduce the length of time people needed to be away from 
home.  
 
Ms Lennox outlined details of the important progression that had been done on 
patient flow that included looking at the movement of people, discharges and 
prioritisation. 
 
Ms Lennox informed the Panel of work that had been undertaken on trauma 
informed pathways that included collaborative care planning with certain individuals 
so that support could be planned from the outset and innovative work done to 
enable them to take on more responsibility to keep themselves well. 
 
Ms Lennox outlined details of the work that was being carried out on how people 
were accessing SWYPFT’s services and the focus that was being given to improve 
the pathways to care so that the Trust could work with people sooner and prevent 
them escalating into an acute pathway. 
 
Ms Harvey informed the Panel of the focus on delivering community services in a 
less centralised way and providing mental health provision within each Primary Care 
Network (PCN). 
 
Ms Harvey outlined details of the focus on reducing reliance on the Trust’s bigger 
hubs and looking at providing better more locally concentrated accessible mental 
health care. 
 
Ms Harvey explained that the Trust had looked at a variety of less traditional mental 
health roles and had broadened provision to include roles like social prescribers 
who helped people find local activities and connections. 
 
Ms Harvey informed the Panel that the Trust had established a team that would 
work with GP practices to target healthcare for people who required both physical 
and mental health care. 
 
Ms Harvey stated that the Trust was also deploying senior mental health 
professionals into GP surgeries in order work with people who had potentially 
secondary care mental health needs in a more fluid way. 
 
Ms Harvey explained that the transformation programme would help reduce the 
need for people to have multiple assessments and would create a seamless 
transition between primary and secondary care. 
 
Ms Dutchburn informed the Panel that the transformational work that was taking 
place was being done in full collaboration with all system partners and with co-
production with service users. 
 
A question and answer session followed that covered a number of issues that 
included: 
 

Page 3



Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel -  27 July 2022 
 

4 
 

  A query that highlighted that some users of the IAPT service had felt that 
they had been discharged to early and a question on how many had 
subsequently been re-referred to the service. 

  An overview of the national performance measures for primary mental health 
care. 

  A detailed explanation of the questionnaires used to measure progress for 
people who had received primary mental health care. 

  An explanation of the pathways of care for people who were not getting 
better through treatment delivered by IAPT. 

  A question seeking clarification on the pressures on the IAPT service and 
whether the pressures were leading to an early discharge. 

  Details of how the IAPT recovery performance indicator helped to prevent 
early discharge. 

  An explanation of the targeted nature of the IAPT service. 

  Confirmation that the Trust monitored feedback from a range of sources that 
included complaints and that the early discharge from IAPT was not an issue 
that came up as a regular feature.  

  Confirmation from Healthwatch Kirklees that issues relating to early 
discharge was not something that they received much feedback on. 

  Input from Healthwatch Kirklees that outlined that key issues highlighted by 
people included difficulty in accessing services particularly CAMHS and 
Childrens mental health services such as autism and ADHD assessments. 

  A question on the timeline for the establishment of the new mental health 
roles within the PCN’s. 

  Confirmation that recruitment to the new transformation roles had started 
and many of the roles were now in place and had begun to deliver services. 

  Clarification that the key performance indicators used by the Trust were very 
patient focused.  

  A question seeking an understanding of the challenges and context to 
waiting times in accessing secondary mental health care and how this was 
communicated to service users. 

  Confirmation that there were no waiting times in the acute pathway. 

  An explanation of the performance of waiting times for routine pathways 
including additional interventions such as a therapeutic programme. 

  The approach to dealing with people waiting for complex psychological 
therapy interventions that included the allocation of a named professional 
contact. 

  Details of the data being collected and used to identify where resources 
needed to be deployed to help support frontline services. 

  Confirmation that one of the Trust’s new priorities for the year was safe and 
responsive care. 

  A question seeking clarification on the timelines for establishing crisis 
houses. 

  Confirmation that the development of crisis houses was just one of a range 
of options used to help provide support for people at home or as near to 
home as possible. 

  Details of the work being carried out in providing appropriate accommodation 
for people experiencing high levels of distress. 

Page 4



Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel -  27 July 2022 
 

5 
 

  Details of the support being provided by commissioners and the work being 
done with the local authority to provide short term accommodation with 
access to the crisis and home based treatment teams. 

  Details of the Well-bean crisis café and the positive feedback from users 
who received support there. 

  A question seeking confirmation on the numbers of people who accessed 
the centrally based crisis cafes. 

  Details of the two crisis cafes based in Huddersfield and Dewsbury and how 
users could access support. 

  Details of the 24-hour helpline. 

  A question on whether the additional support tools were having an impact on 
reducing the need for police having to house people in crisis in overnight 
cells. 

  Details of the preventative services and the impact they could have on 
reducing the need for police intervention via section 136. 

  Confirmation that the numbers of people being detained under section 136 
was now rare and that most people in crisis in Kirklees would be taken to a 
place of safety at Calderdale Royal Hospital or Fieldhead hospital in 
Wakefield. 

  A question seeking clarification on whether the Trust’s Single Point of 
Access (SPA) had improved its liaison with those community groups who 
provided support for people. 

  A question seeking clarification on whether out of area meant out of Kirklees 
or West Yorkshire and whether there were plans to increase local capacity. 

  A question seeking clarification on the profile of people seeking acute help 
for mental health services. 

  Confirmation that people who were unable to be supported locally in acute 
beds were being placed at different locations around the country. 

  Details of the individual support packages designed to help families and 
provide contact for people located out of area. 

  Confirmation that there were no plans to increase the number of locally 
placed acute beds and details of the commitment to continue to develop and 
invest in community services and preventative measures to break the cycle 
of need for out of area acute beds. 

  Details of the work being done to collect data on equalities and how it would 
help the Trust to understand how people from different backgrounds and 
gender used its services. 

  Clarification that the Trust was not seeing a disproportionate number of male 
users accessing its acute services. 

  Confirmation that prior to the Covid pandemic and up August 2021 the Trust 
was one of the best performers in West Yorkshire for out of area 
placements. 

  Confirmation that there had been a planned decision to increase the use out 
of area placements as a tool to manage Covid outbreaks. 

  Details of the work being done through the West Yorkshire ICB to work 
collectively on reducing the numbers of out of area placements. 

  The challenges in obtaining explicit agreement from service users that would 
enable the Trust via its SPA to pass on details about their mental health 
issues and other confidential matters. 

Page 5



Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel -  27 July 2022 
 

6 
 

  The hope that more people would choose to access a mental health 
professional through their local GP surgery rather than using the SPA to get 
a distant appointment. 

  A question seeking clarification on the allocation of mental health 
professionals in the Primary Care Networks (PCN’s). 

  Confirmation that the services provided by the local mental health teams 
were delivered through each PCN. 

  Confirmation that the demand to see mental health professionals was high 
and increasing. 

  An overview of the variety of roles supporting mental health provision. 

  Clarification that the new transformed mental health workforce would be 
multi-disciplinary and the teams had been modelled on the size of the 
PCN’s. 

  Details of the two stages of the transformation of the workforce with stage 
one being focused on a new workforce and new skills sets and the second 
stage looking at increasing the efficiency of the existing workforce. 

  A concern that Trust’s services were predominately reactive and a question 
on what could be done to build in a more proactive element with the longer 
term aim of reducing the resources required to meet demand. 

  The role of public health in developing measures and initiatives to proactively 
manage and support people’s physical and mental health. 

  Details of the work being done by the Trust and health and social care 
colleagues that focused on working with people before they escalated to the 
point of needing a coordinated service of support from different health 
professionals. 

  A request from scrutiny members to review progress of elements of the 
transformational work programme being undertaken by SWYPFT and the 
Council in conjunction with other health partners. 

  A question asking what was considered the biggest future challenge facing 
mental health services. 

  Confirmation that the biggest challenge was workforce and the ability to 
deliver services in the right place and at the right time. 

  Details of the challenges in recruiting social workers and the challenges of 
having different pay rates across the region. 

  The work being done to address the differences in pay rates across West 
Yorkshire. 

  The work being done with universities and students to promote careers in 
social services. 

  The challenges in maintaining a social serves workforce that could legally 
fulfil its duties. 

  The work being done by the Trust in looking creatively at how it could 
maintain and potentially improve the quality of its services. 

  Details of the focus on international nursing recruitment of both mental 
health and physical health nurses and the international recruitment of Allied 
Health Professionals. 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel -  27 July 2022 
 

7 
 

RESOLVED – 
 
1. That the Panel would wish to schedule a future meeting that would focus on the 

work being undertaken by the Kirklees Integrated Wellness Service and the 
Thriving Kirklees Single point of Access Service with a focus on child and 
adolescent mental health services (CAMHS). 

2. That a further meeting be arranged to review progress of elements of the 
transformational work programme being undertaken by SWYFT and the Council 
in conjunction with other health partners.  

3. That the Panel would wish to receive a copy of the Trust’s Integrated 
Performance Report as they become available to enable scrutiny to have an 
ongoing oversight of the Trust’s performance. 
 

7 Setting the Work Programme for 2022/23 
A discussion took place on the Panel’s work programme and agenda plan for the 
2022/23 municipal year. 
 
Ms McKenna thanked the Panel for providing the Kirklees Health and Care 
Partnership with the opportunity to be part of the discussions in shaping the work 
programme for 2022/23. 
 
Ms McKenna informed the Panel that many of the issues on the work programme 
would require system wider input and was happy to work with the Panel to ensure 
that the right representation was available for items under consideration. 
 
A panel wide discussion followed and areas that were covered included: 
 

 A request that consideration be given to the looking at the effectiveness of 
the newly established mental health team. 

 A concern regarding the effectiveness of mental health counselling provided 
in schools. 

 Issues relating to the provision of rheumatology and agreement that 
therapeutics could be added to the item that focused on the work being done 
by Kirklees core physical providers in managing capacity and demand. 

 An agreement to review the approach to supporting patient choice to receive 
end of life care at home and the resources available to meet the needs of the 
patient and their family. 

 Confirmation that CQC would be approached to supply data and information 
on the quality of care in Kirklees to help inform the wider work programme. 

 An offer from Healthwatch to provide the Panel with patient stories and 
experiences to help to gain the perspective of service users. 

 An agreement to widen the scope of the dentistry item to include looking at 
how to support access for people with vulnerabilities and access to dental 
services for pregnant women. 

 Adding a focus on excess death rates to the item covering the impact of 
Covid-19. 

 The potential for a joint piece of work with the Childrens Scrutiny Panel 
relating to the transition of Children with a special educational needs and 
disability (SEND) from Childrens services to adult services. 

Page 7



Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel -  27 July 2022 
 

8 
 

 An overview of the agenda plan for the next few months and an agreement 
that each meeting would include a focus on two substantive items. 

 Confirmation that the agenda plan would be incorporated into the work 
programme document. 

 An explanation for the reason why the April meeting had been cancelled.  

 Confirmation that additional panel meetings could be arranged if required and 
the different approaches to scrutinising issues such as visits to front line 
services. 

 
RESOLVED – 
 

1. That subject to the agreed amendments that the Work Programme for 
2022/23 as presented be taken forward.  

2. That panel members would prioritise the panel meeting dates in their diaries. 
 

 
 
 

Page 8



K
IR

K
LE

ES
 C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

U
N

C
IL

/C
A

B
IN

ET
/C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

M
EE

TI
N

G
S 

ET
C

 
D

EC
LA

R
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
IN

TE
R

ES
TS

 
H

ea
lth

 &
 A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

N
am

e 
of

 C
ou

nc
ill

or
 

Ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
an

 
in

te
re

st
 

Ty
pe

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t (

eg
 a

 
di

sc
lo

sa
bl

e 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

 o
r a

n 
“O

th
er

 
In

te
re

st
”)

 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 

in
te

re
st

 re
qu

ire
 y

ou
 to

 
w

ith
dr

aw
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

hi
le

 th
e 

ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 
ha

ve
 a

n 
in

te
re

st
 is

 u
nd

er
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n?
  [

Y/
N

] 

B
rie

f d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 y

ou
r 

in
te

re
st

 

Si
gn

ed
:  

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

   
   

   
D

at
ed

:  
  …

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
.. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



N
O

TE
S 

D
is

cl
os

ab
le

 P
ec

un
ia

ry
 In

te
re

st
s 

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

s,
 th

ey
 a

re
 y

ou
r d

is
cl

os
ab

le
 p

ec
un

ia
ry

 in
te

re
st

s 
un

de
r t

he
 n

ew
 n

at
io

na
l r

ul
es

. A
ny

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 
sp

ou
se

 o
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

ny
 p

er
so

n 
w

ith
 w

ho
m

 y
ou

 a
re

 li
vi

ng
 a

s 
hu

sb
an

d 
or

 w
ife

, o
r a

s 
if 

th
ey

 w
er

e 
yo

ur
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
.  

 A
ny

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
of

fic
e,

 tr
ad

e,
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n 
or

 v
oc

at
io

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
on

 fo
r p

ro
fit

 o
r g

ai
n,

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, u

nd
er

ta
ke

s.
  

A
ny

 p
ay

m
en

t o
r p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f a

ny
 o

th
er

 fi
na

nc
ia

l b
en

ef
it 

(o
th

er
 th

an
 fr

om
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y)
 m

ad
e 

or
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 p

er
io

d 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t o
f a

ny
 e

xp
en

se
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y 

yo
u 

in
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

ou
t d

ut
ie

s 
as

 a
 m

em
be

r, 
or

 to
w

ar
ds

 y
ou

r e
le

ct
io

n 
ex

pe
ns

es
.  

 A
ny

 c
on

tra
ct

 w
hi

ch
 is

 m
ad

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
yo

u,
 o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 (o

r a
 b

od
y 

in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
as

 
a 

be
ne

fic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t) 
an

d 
yo

ur
 c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
-  

• 
un

de
r w

hi
ch

 g
oo

ds
 o

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
r w

or
ks

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
ex

ec
ut

ed
; a

nd
  

• 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
fu

lly
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

d.
  

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t i

n 
la

nd
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
av

e 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 is
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y.
  

 A
ny

 li
ce

nc
e 

(a
lo

ne
 o

r j
oi

nt
ly

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s)

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

ol
ds

 to
 o

cc
up

y 
la

nd
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 
au

th
or

ity
 fo

r a
 m

on
th

 o
r l

on
ge

r. 
 

 A
ny

 te
na

nc
y 

w
he

re
 (t

o 
yo

ur
 k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 - 

th
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

 is
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y;
 a

nd
 th

e 
te

na
nt

 is
 a

 b
od

y 
in

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r 

ci
vi

l p
ar

tn
er

, h
as

 a
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t. 
 

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

 h
as

 in
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 o
f a

 b
od

y 
w

he
re

 - 
 

(a
) t

ha
t b

od
y 

(to
 y

ou
r k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 h

as
 a

 p
la

ce
 o

f b
us

in
es

s 
or

 la
nd

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f y
ou

r c
ou

nc
il 

or
 a

ut
ho

rit
y;

 a
nd

  
(b

) e
ith

er
 - 

 
 

th
e 

to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 e

xc
ee

ds
 £

25
,0

00
 o

r o
ne

 h
un

dr
ed

th
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l i
ss

ue
d 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t 

bo
dy

; o
r  

 
if 

th
e 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t b

od
y 

is
 o

f m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

, t
he

 to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ha

re
s 

of
 a

ny
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

 in
 

w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

as
 a

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t e

xc
ee

ds
 o

ne
 h

un
dr

ed
th

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l i

ss
ue

d 
sh

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
l o

f t
ha

t c
la

ss
.  

 

Page 10



Version 1: A Henshaw/D Tinker 25.08.22 
P a g e  | 1 

1. Introduction  

This briefing has been prepared by Calderdale and Huddersfield NHS Foundation Trust 

(CHFT) and Mid Yorkshire Hospitals Trust (MYHT) in partnership to update Kirklees Health 

& Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel on progress with:  

 Recommendations and local improvement and action plans following publication of 
the Ockenden reports. 

 Maternity workforce and the impact of these on childbirth choices for childbearing 
people in Kirklees, with reference to freestanding midwife led birth centres in the 
area.   

 Risk assessment of midwifery-led birth units against published European birth centre 
standards. 

 

2. Ockenden Update  

On the 30 March 2022 the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care published Dame 

Donna Ockenden’s final report from the independent review of maternity services at 

Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital NHS Trust. This second report builds upon the first report 

in that all the Immediate and Essential Actions within that report remain important and must 

be progressed. The second report goes on to identify new themes from which additional 

immediate and essential actions for Trusts have been developed.  

FINAL_INDEPENDENT

_MATERNITY_REVIEW_OF_MATERNITY_SERVICES_REPORT.pdf
 

The investigation team heard evidence from 1486 families who wanted to understand what 

had happened during their care and wanted the system to learn. The investigation team 

identified thematic patterns in the quality of care, Trust investigation procedures, and 

identified where opportunities for learning and improving the quality of care have been 

missed. The review team found failures in governance and leadership, failure to follow 

national guidelines, failure to escalate and work collaboratively across disciplines. 

In terms of clinical governance, investigatory processes were not followed and of a poor 

standard. Reviews were not multidisciplinary, and the trust board did not have oversight or a 

full understanding of the issues and concerns within the maternity service, and there was a 

lack of oversight by the trust board when investigations took place maternity governance 

teams downgraded serious incidents to local investigations. 

The first report made explicit recommendations around 7 Immediate Essential Actions (IEAs) 

with an expectation that all providers provide assurance against, and the final report includes 

a further 15 IEA recommendations with 75 actions, again with an expectation that all Trusts 

will ensure compliance. 

Regional maternity teams were commissioned to undertake Ockenden Assurance Visits in 

each Trust in England to examine evidence of compliance with the first 7 IEAs.  

CHFT and MYHT had assurance visits in June 2022. The visit team comprised the Regional 

Chief Midwife and Deputy Chief Midwife, Regional Chief Obstetrician, representatives from 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



Version 1: A Henshaw/D Tinker 25.08.22 
P a g e  | 2 

NHS England and Maternity Voices Partnerships (MVPs). The visit schedule included one to 

one meetings and focus groups with service users and staff as well as review of 

documentary evidence (including policies and guidelines, serious incident reports and action 

plans) and site visits. Initial feedback was provided to Trust Executives at the end of the visit. 

A full report will be published by NHS England in August/ September 2022.  

Feedback for both Trusts was extremely positive.  

On day feedback for CHFT: 

 Staff in all areas are really welcoming and willing to speak to the visiting team 

 Clear governance processes, with patient safety a priority and is valued 

 Open and responsive culture 

 The ‘weekly view newsletter’ is received by all and provides feedback and learning to 
all staff. Staff value this. 

 Evidence of staff involvement of developing new processes and risk assessments 
(Avoiding Term Admissions into Neonatal units) ATAIN risk assessment) 

 The MVP chair feels very valued and listened to. The MVP is well funded 

 Comprehensive training packages with good compliance and trajectories, which is 
responsive to learning from incidents, complaints & relevant national policy 

 The value of an end-to-end maternity system is threaded throughout, ensuring 
personalisation of care and ability to audit quickly and accurately 

 Clear evidence of commitment to addressing inequality 

 Audit is being embedded as an everyday occurrence with everyone responsible for it 

 Good MDT working 
 

On day feedback for MYHT: 

 The evidence submitted prior to the visit was exemplary – well done! 

 Open & honest staff, however the medics were difficult to locate 

 Clear reporting structure 

 ‘BOSH’ prompts on ward to enhance safety (‘BOSH’ is an approach to assessing 
staff wellbeing in shift) 

 Governance processes are good, with good examples of testing learning 

 Sharing of learning via different sources to capture staff in all areas and levels 

 Good visibility of senior leaders on labour ward especially in times of high acuity, 
providing support 

 Supportive preceptorship midwife 

 Now has a functioning MVP and huge improvements made in the past 12months 

 On the whole, the team are receptive to improvement and innovation 

 Clear about their challenges, which includes recruitment/staffing, culture, and morale 

 Peer support mechanisms across the service 

 Good psychological support for staff – which is staff-led 
 

Both Trusts reviewed the second Ockenden report and recommendations and undertook a 

RAG rating exercise.  

 

 

Page 12



Version 1: A Henshaw/D Tinker 25.08.22 
P a g e  | 3 

Summary of RAG rating:   

CHFT MYHT 

10 Red actions: 
All maternity services must involve service 
users (ideally via their MVP) in developing 
complaints response processes that are 
caring and transparent. New MVP Chair in 
post who we are working with to share 
themes, trends, and responses 
Trusts must have in place specialist 
antenatal clinics dedicated to accommodate 
women with multifetal pregnancies.  They 
must have a dedicated consultant and have 
dedicated specialist midwifery staffing.  
These recommendations are supported by 
the NICE Guideline Twin and Triplet 
Pregnancies 2019.- The trust has two 
named consultants leads and we are 
progressing work to provide a specific 
clinic with dedicated ultra-sonographer 
There must be a continuous audit process 
to review all in utero transfers and cases 
where a decision is made not to transfer to 
a Level 3 neonatal unit and when delivery 
subsequently occurs in the local unit. All 
deliveries <27weeks are currently 
reported to the LMS with a case 
summary. CHFT level 2 NNU criteria 
gestation >27 weeks. The neonatal team 
are progressing the continuous audit. 
Neonatal providers must ensure that 
processes are defined which enable 
telephone advice and instructions to be 
given, where appropriate, during the course 
of neonatal resuscitations.  When it is 
anticipated that the consultant is not 
immediately available (for example out of 
hours), there must be a mechanism that 
allows a real-time dialogue to take place 
directly between the consultant and the 
resuscitating team if required.  The 
Neonatal team are progressing solutions 
to meet this requirement  
Neonatal practitioners must ensure that 
once an airway is established and other 
reversible causes have been excluded, 
appropriate early consideration is given to 
increasing inflation pressures to achieve 
adequate chest rise.  Pressures above 
30cmH2O in term babies, or above 
25cmH2O in preterm babies may be 
required.  The Resuscitation Council UK 
Newborn Life Support (NLS) Course must 
consider highlighting this treatment point 

7 Red actions: 
Education and training of Labour Ward Co-
ordintors – awaiting publication of 
national programme  
Supernumerary clinical skills coordinators in 
all areas – in process of recruiting 
suitably qualified staff 
Every Trust must have a patient safety 
specialist – in progress 
Maternal medicine specialist – post 
recruited to and waiting for pre 
employment checks 
There must be a continuous audit process 
to review all in utero transfers and cases 
where a decision is made not to transfer to 
a Level 3 neonatal unit and when delivery 
subsequently occurs in the local unit – in 
progress with neonatal team. 
Midwifery units must complete annual risk 
assessment – completed 
Trusts must provide bereavement care 
services for women and families who suffer 
pregnancy loss. This must be available 
daily, not just Monday to Friday – currently 
provide specialist care Monday to Friday 
– workforce review in progress. 
 
25 Amber actions – key areas: 
Training – actions progressing but 
compliance not yet at ambition target 
due to clinical demands and pressures.  
 

Page 13



Version 1: A Henshaw/D Tinker 25.08.22 
P a g e  | 4 

more clearly in the NLS algorithm Local 
Guidance under review 
Neonatal providers must ensure sufficient 
numbers of appropriately trained 
consultants, tier 2 staff (middle grade 
doctors or ANNPs) and nurses are available 
in every type of neonatal unit (NICU, LNU 
and SCBU) to deliver safe care 24/7 in line 
with national service specifications Action 
plan completed and mitigations due to 
current non-compliance. Non-compliant 
due to not having 2 Registrars across 
paediatrics and neonates at night. 
Mitigation night registrar supported by 
on-call consultant and twilight registrar 
until midnight 
There must be robust mechanisms for the 
identification of psychological distress, and 
clear pathways for women and their families 
to access emotional support and specialist 
psychological support as appropriate. 
Review being undertaken of current 
pathway 
Access to timely emotional and 
psychological support should be without the 
need for formal mental health diagnosis, as 
psychological distress can be a normal 
reaction to adverse experiences. Review 
being undertaken of current provision 
Psychological support for the most complex 
levels of need should be delivered by 
psychological practitioners who have 
specialist expertise and experience in the 
area of maternity care. Review being 
undertaken of current provision and 
workforce, including training needs 
analysis 
 
All trusts must develop and maintain a 
conflict of clinical opinion policy to support 
staff members in being able to escalate 
their clinical concerns regarding a woman’s 
care in case of disagreement between 
healthcare professionals. Developing a 
policy, but currently have human factors 
and civility included in mandatory 
multidisciplinary training day 
 

 

A multidisciplinary action plan has been devised that incorporates all the 

recommendations/actions, with regular updates provided to both Divisional and Trust Boards 

within CHFT and MYHT.  

Page 14



Version 1: A Henshaw/D Tinker 25.08.22 
P a g e  | 5 

Whilst local improvement work continues, the brief from the national maternity team has 

been that once the East Kent Inquiry report is published, a national maternity improvement 

plan will be developed which will supersede local plans.    

3. Midwifery Workforce  

 

Over the last year CHFT and MYHT have experienced unprecedented midwifery staffing 

shortfalls against planned workforce levels across all areas due to vacancy, sickness, and 

maternity leave. To ensure the safety of women and babies, and in accordance with 

guidance from NHSEI, both Trusts have had to prioritise provision of 1:1 care for women in 

established labour, this has contributed to decisions to temporarily suspend Huddersfield 

Birth Centre and Bronte Birth Centre.  

Staffing levels in Huddersfield and Bronte Birth Centres has been critical, with 76.2% of 

Bronte Birth Centre staff being unavailable for work for at least three months due to sickness 

and maternity leave. At CHFT the current overall midwifery staff unavailability in July 

including vacancy, sickness and maternity was 32%. 

Despite these challenges women continue to be offered three choices of place of birth by 

both Trusts in line with the aspirations of Better Births: home birth, midwife led alongside 

birth centre and consultant led unit in Halifax and Wakefield.     

Both Trusts have a recruitment and retention strategy which is informed by the national 

maternity recruitment and retention campaign. Both Trusts have dedicated recruitment and 

retention lead midwives who are responsible for delivering the national campaign. MYHT 

also participate in the NHS Flex for the Future Project. 

Local exit interviews suggest the main reasons midwives leave are retirement, relocation, 

moving to a smaller Trust where it is perceived the workload is less, leaving the profession 

(either to become self-employed or to take some time out), promotion and to work for an 

Agency (Flexibility, no requirement to work on call or in a continuity of carer team (mainly 

community midwives)).  

All Trusts in the Local Maternity System (LMS) are part of the LMS Band 5 Midwife (newly 

qualified midwife) recruitment scheme. For the first time in many years CHFT and MYHT 

forecast an ongoing deficit of midwives once the cohort of newly qualified midwives start 

work in October/ November 2022.  This is in part due to the small number of student 

midwives completing their studies at Huddersfield University this year. LTHT and Bradford 

forecast similar situations, LTHT to a lesser degree. The longer-term impact of this is a 

forecast deficit against Birthrate Plus recommended staffing levels throughout 2022-2023 

and into 2023-2024. Birthrate Plus is currently the only midwifery-specific, national tool that 

gives intelligence and insights needed to be able to model midwifery staffing numbers.     

 

 

 

      

Page 15



Version 1: A Henshaw/D Tinker 25.08.22 
P a g e  | 6 

Table 1: Vacancy levels end July 2022 

 Births Planned 
WTE (MW 
and RN) 

Actual 
WTE 

Vacancy 
WTE 

Planned 
Leavers 
(to end 
Oct) 

Midwives 
and RN in 
recruitment 
pipeline 

CHFT 4712 198 157.98 40.02 8.52 13.56 

MYHT  5800 255 227.32 27.68 4.83 23.44 

 

Table 2: Staff Unavailability end July 2022  

  Annual 
Leave 
(Target 15%) 

Maternity 
Leave (1%) 

Sickness 
(4%) 

Total 
(Uplift 23%) 

CHFT RM 12.29% 3.76% 6.89% 27.91% 

MSW 11.84% 2.1% 7.3% 27.82% 

MYHT RM 13.6% 4.3% 10.3% 33.3% 

RN 19.6% 0% 24.1% 45% 

MSW 11.6% 4.3% 20.8% 42.7% 

 

4. Birth Centre Risk Assessment  

 

CHFT and MYHT have worked together to risk assess the structure, function, governance, 

and standards of both birth centres against European guidelines for birth centres, and to 

explore opportunities for the future.  

NICE Clinical guideline [CG190] Intrapartum care for healthy women and babies (NICE 

2017) recommends that low-risk multiparous women are advised that giving birth at home or 

in a midwifery-led unit (freestanding or alongside) is particularly suitable for them because 

the rate of interventions is lower and the outcome for the baby is no different compared with 

an obstetric unit. Low-risk nulliparous (no previous children) women should be advised that 

planning to give birth in a midwifery-led unit (freestanding or alongside) is particularly 

suitable for them because the rate of interventions is lower and the outcome for the baby is 

no different compared with an obstetric unit.  

Maternity and neonatal risk status can change throughout pregnancy, during labour and 

following birth. Currently approximately 9% of women resident in North Kirklees booked to 

birth at MYHT are on the intensive maternity care pathway, 50% of women are on the 

intermediate maternity care pathway and 41% of women are on the standard maternity care 

pathway. Approximately 9% of women resident in Greater Huddersfield / South Kirklees 

booked to birth at CHFT are on the intensive maternity care pathway, 43% of women are on 

the intermediate maternity care pathway and 49% of women are on the standard maternity 

care pathway. 

To support decision making about place of birth, up to date data about ambulance response 

times and journey times is provided. Many women at low risk of obstetric complication during 

pregnancy choose to birth on the site where obstetric, neonatal, and emergency maternity 

theatre support is available if required.  

Page 16



Version 1: A Henshaw/D Tinker 25.08.22 
P a g e  | 7 

Over the last five years there has been a year-on-year reduction in the number of women 

birthing in Bronte Birth Centre with 149 women birthing there in 2021. In a similar period 

(2019), 238 women birthed at Huddersfield Birth Centre.  

Findings of the risk assessment were similar for both Trusts with robust evidence of:  

 Strong governance arrangements. 

 Clear leadership. 

 Robust training provision for staff working in the birth centres.  

 Assuming full staffing, no safety or care quality concerns related to care pathways or 
multidisciplinary working were identified for either birth centre. 

 

Areas for opportunity included:  

 Recommendations to develop a multi-agency, multidisciplinary birth centre advisory 
group – the first meeting of the CHFT/ MYHT Group will take place at the end of 
September, with representation from North Kirklees and Huddersfield Maternity 
Voices Partnerships Group as well as local partners including public health.   

 Develop the birth centre as a midwifery hub.  
 
Within the standards, reference is made to developing more integrated service models with 

groups of midwives working in communities, supporting homebirth and birth centre birth 

rather than solely working in the birth centre. This opportunity is being considered by both 

Trusts.  

5. Conclusion  

Both Trusts continue to have an ambition to re-establish a freestanding midwife led birth 

centre in Kirklees. Recruitment campaigns have been reviewed and an additional campaign 

is being developed to try to attract new staff to the birth centres.    

CHFT and MYHT are working in partnership to explore a safe and sustainable model of 
standalone maternity services. This will be managed through the joint CEO led Partnership 

Board between the two organisations. Whilst committed to an offer for the population of 

Kirklees – a one size fits all model may not work due to the different pressures we are both 
facing as organisations. 
 

6. Recommendations  

(Overview and Scrutiny Committee) are recommended to note: 

 Update in relation to CHFT and MYHT response to Ockenden 

 Unprecedented staffing gaps in both birth centres and maternity services. These are 

consistent with most Trusts in the region.   

 Ongoing recruitment challenges in both organisations and the impact of these on 

service delivery and women’s choices. 

 Findings of the evaluation and risk assessment against European standards for Birth 

centres and partnership working in the Advisory Group.    

 The continued ambition of both Trusts to re-establish a free standing, midwife led 

birth centre in Kirklees 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Name of meeting: Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel 
 
Date: 6 September 2022  
 
Title of report: Unplanned Care  
To provide members of the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel with the context and 
background to the discussions on unplanned care. 
 

Key Decision - Is it likely to result in spending or 
saving £250k or more, or to have a significant 
effect on two or more electoral wards?   
 

No 
 

Key Decision - Is it in the Council’s Forward Plan 
(key decisions and private reports)? 
 

Not Applicable  
 

The Decision - Is it eligible for call in by 
Scrutiny? 
 

Not Applicable  
 

Date signed off by Strategic Director & name 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service Director for 
Finance? 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service Director for 
Legal Governance and Commissioning? 
 

 
 
The report has been produced for information only 
and to facilitate the discussions on unplanned care 

Health Contact Jon Parnaby Transformation Programme Manager; 
Urgent & Emergency Care – Kirklees Health and 
Care Partnership 
 

 
 
Electoral wards affected: None Specific 
 
Ward councillors consulted:  Not Applicable 

 
Public or private: Public    
 

Has GDPR been considered? Yes. The report does not include any personal data that 
identifies an individual. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



1. Summary 
 
1.1 Health and adult social care systems are always under considerable pressure during the 

winter period as demand for services tends to increase significantly with the onset of cold 
weather and an increase in respiratory illnesses.  
 

1.2 However, in recent years this pressure has been building not just at winter but throughout 
the year and this means that there is an increasing need to manage demand and capacity 
issues at various points throughout the year. 
 

1.3 In recognition of these year-round pressures the Kirklees Health and Adult Social care 
Scrutiny Panel has included in its work programme for 2022/23 an item that will consider 
the work being done to manage periods throughout the annual cycle when there are 
capacity and demand imbalances for unplanned care. 
 

1.4 Representatives from organisations across the Kirklees health and adult social care 
system will be in attendance to outline the work that is being done to manage expected 
and unexpected increases in demand and deal with capacity issues that will include: 

 Examples of the work that is being developed to shift resources, skills, and expertise 
out of hospital and into the community. 

 Data that highlights the peaks and troughs of capacity and demand challenges 
throughout the year. 

 The consequences of increased demand and capacity pressures. 

 The work that is being done to build on lessons learned from managing previous 
periods of demand. 
  

1.5 A presentation pack containing Information covering the areas above is attached. 
 

2. Information required to take a decision 
N/A 
 

3. Implications for the Council 
N/A 
 

3.1 Working with People 
No specific implications  
 

3.2 Working with Partners 
 No specific implications 
 
3.3 Place Based Working  

 No specific implications 
 
3.4 Climate Change and Air Quality 

No specific implications 
 

3.5 Improving outcomes for children 
 No specific implications 
 
3.6  Other (e.g. Legal/Financial or Human Resources) 

No specific implications  
 

4 Consultees and their opinions 

Not applicable 
 
 Page 20



5 Next steps and timelines 
That the Overview and Scrutiny Panel for Health and Adult Social Care takes account of 
the information presented and considers the next steps it wishes to take. 

 

6 Officer recommendations and reasons 
That the Panel considers the information provided and determines if any further information 
or action is required. 

 

7 Cabinet Portfolio Holder’s recommendations 

Not applicable 
 

8 Contact officer:  
Richard Dunne – Principal Governance Officer 
richard.dunne@kirklees.gov.uk 
 

9 Background Papers and History of Decisions 
Not applicable 
 

10 Service Director responsible  

Julie Muscroft – Service Director, Legal, Governance and Commissioning   
 

Page 21

mailto:yolande.myers@kirklees.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Kirklees 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
6th September

P
age 23



Unplanned Care; Resilience Planning

Quote 

NHS England 12th August 2022

“we have begun planning for the coming winter earlier 
than usual, recognising pressure on the NHS is likely to 
be substantial, particularly in UEC [Urgent & Emergency 
Care], making the most of the opportunity created by the 
formation of ICBs to maximise the benefits of system 
working”

P
age 24



Unplanned Care; Resilience Planning

Quote 

NHS England 12th August 2022

“we have begun planning for the coming winter earlier 
than usual, recognising pressure on the NHS is likely to 
be substantial, particularly in UEC [Urgent & Emergency 
Care], making the most of the opportunity created by the 
formation of ICBs to maximise the benefits of system 
working”

P
age 25



Partners

NHS West Yorkshire Integrated Care Board
Kirklees Council
Calderdale & Huddersfield NHS Foundation Trust
Mid-Yorkshire Hospital NHS Trust
South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
Primary Care
Community Pharmacy West Yorkshire
Local Care Direct
Locala
Third/Voluntary Sector
Yorkshire Ambulance Service

P
age 26



Whole System Approach
Resilience Planning 

EPRR focus – ICS and Place
Managing simultaneous incidents with COVID-19 i.e. 
severe weather, CBRN, mass evacuation 
Preparedness in line with Reasonable Worst Case 
Scenario planning assumptions, i.e. hospital 
admissions, ICU capacity, mortality capacity, COVID-19  
management, public realm 

 

     Winter/Resilience
Planning Requirements
        Workforce
        Surge capacity planning 
        Flu Covid vaccinations programme
        Managing system flow /discharge     
        Managing system pressure, risk and   

escalations 
Extremis actions/mutual aid

        NHS 111 First- alternatives to ED
        

Delivery of Core Services
Elective activity 
Primary and 
Community services UCR/Virtual Wards
Mental health services 
Acute/Community
Discharge
Social Care 
Cancer services
Diagnostics
ICU capacity 

Co
lla
bo
ra
tio
n  Leadership   

 

Demand Capacity 
bed occupancy
Ambulance 
services   

Managing system 
pressures and 
outbreaks

UEC 
demand / 
capacity 

Quality, 
Safety, 

Experience & 
Inequalities 

P
age 27



Data Summary Insight
• Primary Care: GP attended appointments have continued on an upward trend since march 2020, the attendances 
now are higher than pre-pandemic levels with 79% of appointments being Face to Face, 46% attended on the same 
day and 3.6% DNA.  The appointment rate per ‘000 is higher in Kirklees than nationally. 

• ED Attendances: To note there was a reduction in overall attendances between Nov 21 to Feb 22 with an increasing 
trend stabilising over the last three months. Looking at the last 3 months in comparison with the same period last 
year attendances are 0.9% higher at CHFT and 1.1% lower at MYHT for Kirklees population.

• >12-hour ED Breaches: there is no statistical correlation between ED attendances and >12 hour breaches, please 
refer to Trust for further intelligence relating to workforce and acuity.

• YAS: the See, Treat and convey performance is 62% at CHFT and 66.4% at MYHT, the average handover time is 
significantly lower at Dewsbury District Hospital 8mins 51secs, Pinderfields 14mins 35secs compared to Calderdale 
Royal 20mins and Huddersfield Royal 20mins 23secs, handover % within 15 mins is higher at Dewsbury 83.1% and 
Pinderfields 63.2% compared to Calderdale 47.8% and Huddersfield 49.7%

• Kirklees 111 demand: Nothing significantly different from West Yorkshire trends, Kirklees top complaint was 18% 
Chest Pain and upper back, 11% of total calls had Ambulance final disposition and 54% Primary Care, 17.8% of 
total calls were in relation to 20–29-year-olds.

• Kirklees 999 demand: Chief complaint was 111 advice followed by falls and back injury.  67% of calls resulted in see, 
treat and convey to ED. This is not that different to the WY position.

Further reference to data insight will be given during Partner Insight narrative

P
age 28



Kirklees Council Insight
• Significant amount of support, service and activity outside of the hospital;
• Admission avoidance to prevent inappropriate attendances
• Anticipatory care across community partners
• Need to get patients and service users on the right pathway
• Home first as a priority
• Proactive Care Home support team
• Strengthen partnerships with independent care providers
• Housing integrated into teams
• Aim to reduce reliance on beds
• Trialing assistive technology
• Follow up in home environment; assess in the home both cared for and carer
• Promoting independence

P
age 29



Mid-Yorkshire Hospital Trust Insight
• Evidenced history of collaboration and system working since last Winter provides an 
excellent foundation for this Winter.  

• Strong focus on supporting people in their homes and the community is a key element of the 
planning, making the most of 

• Virtual Wards with a focus on patients with respiratory illnesses and frailty
• Support for patients with mental health needs
• Urgent Community Response to support care homes and reduce emergency department 
attendances

• Voluntary sector to help people on discharge from hospital and to provide general support
• Effective signposting to ensure people can get advice and guidance when needed e.g. 
community pharmacy

• Additional hospitals beds at both Pinderfields Hospital and Dewsbury
• Focus on ambulance handover times to improve patient experience and ensure availability of 
ambulances to respond to 999 calls

• Focus on continued delivery of planned outpatient, diagnostic and surgery cases across 
Winter to support patients and continue to reduce waiting timesP

age 30



Calderdale Hospital Foundation Trust Insight
• Focus on Urgent Community Response & Community Teams and not automatic referral into 
Emergency Department (ED)

• Home first
• Therapy model is critical at home not in acute bed base
• Role of voluntary/third sector in supporting patients at home
• Clarity on options and making it easy to access for clinicians (Single point access)
• Increased referrals into Urgent Care Hubs within both EDs to take out all P4 (Manchester Triage 
Score grading) illness patients

• Surge capacity modelling for Covid and Non-Covid
• Point of Care Testing within EDs for Covid and Flu
• Discharge focus board rounds with Ward Managers, Matrons, Discharge Coordinators and 
Therapists

• Ambulance handover Standard Operating Procedure to prevent delays
• Virtual ward hub to commenceP

age 31



Locala Insight
• Strength in Partnership
• Streamline and avoid duplication
• Developing credible alternatives to avoid admissions
• Prioritisation on strengthening Urgent Community Response through the Alliance
• Building on Trusted assessor single assessment with community partners
• Working with partners to strengthen the Integrated Transfer of Care hub
• Ensuring people are effectively moved on from Intermediate Care when their rehabilitation is 
complete

• Working with system partners to support care homes over winter
• Implementing surge and escalation plans internally to ensure we remain resilient and responsive
• Development of Virtual Wards in partnership across Kirklees, Wakefield and Calderdale

P
age 32



Primary Care Insight
• Presented on the day

P
age 33



Yorkshire Ambulance Service Insight
• About Us - Scope
• Contribution from Community First Responders 
• Risks and Challenges
• Greater Resilience
• Kirklees – a Typical Day
• System Support Initiatives

• Emergency Department avoidance
• Patient Flow
• Workforce (Case study)

• Ambulance Response Performance
• Hospital Handover

P
age 34



Risk Part 1; Generic across all partners

• Risks
• Workforce 

• Recruitment & Retention
• Increased Absence, Staff burnout

• Covid, Flu and respiratory conditions 
• Imbalance of demand v capacity
• Infection Prevention and Control 
restrictions 

• Pay award impact on funding
• Growing waiting lists 
• Financial pressure -non recurrent
• Adverse weather and service disruption 
• Impact of Winter fuel/costs of living 
rises

• Supply and demand of consumables 

• Priorities
• Ensuring there is no harm to patients 
and service users

• Any action does not increase health 
inequalities

• Workforce – well being and best use 
• Demand v capacity place-based 
modelling 

• Communications – ICS/Place
• Preparation for winter monies
• Review adverse weather plans 
• Agree consistent reporting/escalation 
across ICS 

• Review and Agree Extremis action 
plans

P
age 35



Risk Part 2; Urgent Care Pre-Hospital
• Risks

• Impact of further Covid peaks and new variants on demand for services
• Public complacency around Covid and vaccines
• Demand into 111 & 999 services- sustainable delivery 
• Pressure within Primary Care services
• Home Care providers resilience against cost-of-living rises

• Priorities
• Delivery of Vaccination Programmes
• 7-day provision where able – reduce variation 
• Sustainable Clinical assessment service
• Alternatives to Accident & Emergency – pathways/services 
• Optimise primary care access e.g. Primary Care Network’s extended 
access services

• Maximise minor urgent care services – Urgent Care Hub, Walk-in-Centre 
etc

• Communications to manage population expectations and behaviour
• To work with and support Yorkshire Ambulance Service
• Closer working with the voluntary sectorP

age 36



Risk 3; Urgent Care in Hospital
• Risks

• Infection Prevention & Control restrictions reducing capacity 
• Increased non elective demand
• Patients presenting with higher acuity conditions 
• Surge pressures affecting elective/ planned care capacity
• Mental health capacity and flow
• Near Patient Testing for flu and covid affecting laboratory capacity
• Ambulance delays / handovers

• Priorities
• Maximise Same Day Emergency Care pathways 
• Continued prioritisation of ambulance handovers
• Development of Urgent Care Hub / Treatment Centres
• Integrated Transfer of Care hub development 
• Commitment to elective care recovery

P
age 37



Risk Part 4; Discharge & Community Services
• Risks

• Care Home resilience- fragile market 
• Cessation Discharge to Assess funding - financial risk
• Increased demand for Higher Acuity complex pathways
• Social Care reform
• Carers resilience with higher acuity and complexity of discharges

• Priorities
• Commitment to a Home First philosophy
• Improving flow and discharge via 100-day discharge challenge
• Avoid duplication in assessments across pathways
• Embed integrated pathways to coordinate support and avoid duplication
• Assess the Impact of effective integration in the community e.g. 
Reablement

• Support Options providing support for discharge through innovative 
outcomes and enhanced relationships with providers

• Closer working with the voluntary sector
• Bed Modelling – system wide 

P
age 38



Consequences; for consideration

• Ambulance diverts
• Single Virtual Contact Centre for 111
• Advantage/Adastra ransomware attack
• 111…now recruiting but time to get online
• Adult Social Care Reforms
• Urgent Care Hubs – access to primary care
• Increased demand and capacity pressures 
e.g. Increased A&E waiting times; longer 
waiting times to see GP; impact on elective 
procedures 

P
age 39



P
age 40



Following supporting slides for 
information/assurance and not 
presentation

P
age 41



Primary Care Appointments – Trend 

20

• Slide demonstrates the number of appointments offered within General Practice for Kirklees 

• **The publication includes important information however it does not show the totality of GP activity/workload. The data presented only contains information 
which was captured on the GP practice systems. This limits the activity reported on and does not represent all work happening within a primary care setting. There 
are no national standards for data entry into GP systems which are not primarily designed for data analysis  purposes

Kirklees

P
age 42



Kirklees Primary Care Appointments 

21

Per 1000 Population

Year on Year

P
age 43



CHFT ED Attendances 

22

The graph above shows the total CHFT ED attendances over the last 16 months and the proportion of 
which are Kirklees population. On average Kirklees accounts for 47.3% of all ED attendances.  To note 
there was a reduction in overall attendances between Nov 21 to Feb 22 with an increasing trend 
stabilising over the last three months.  The number of ED attendances over the last 3 months are  

0.9% higher than the same period last year.

P
age 44



MYHT ED Attendances 

23

The graph shows the total MYHT ED attendances over the last 16 
months and the proportion of which are Kirklees population. On average 
Kirklees accounts for 38.5% of Type1-2 ED attendances, 83.4% of WIC 
attendances.  To note there was a reduction in overall attendances 

between Nov 21 to Feb 22 with an increasing trend stabilising over the 
last three months.  The number of ED attendances over the last three 

months are 1.1% lower than the same period last year.

P
age 45



>12 Hour ED Breaches

24

The table above shows the number of >12 hour breaches by month for both MYHT and 
CHFT, there does not appear to be any correlation between attendances and increase in 12 

hour breaches. 

P
age 46



P
age 47



Kirklees Council Statutory Activity over 12 months

P
age 48



Covid Vaccination status as at July 2022 
Unvaccinated 

count

P
age 49



Covid – CHFT In Hospital 

28

As reported 23rd August
• Covid in hospital position – 4% of total beds
• Total of 27 confirmed covid patients in a bed 
• ICU – 1 patient in a bed 
• 13% of staff absences due to covid

P
age 50



Covid – MYHT In Hospital 

29

As reported 23rd August
• Covid in hospital position – 7% of total beds 
• Total of 78 confirmed covid patients in a bed 
• ICU – 1 patient in a bed 
• 10% of staff absences due to covid

P
age 51



Unvaccinated status as at July 2022 

P
age 52



Flu Data for 2021/22 as of 7th March 2022

Flu data as at 07.03.22 Using 
Foundry Flu Dashboard Vaccinated

Total Eligible 
population 

size
% Vaccinated

% 2020.21 
Total 

Outturn**

No. Of 
vaccinations 

achieved as at 
08.03.21

Total 
Eligible 

population 
size

% 
Vaccinat
ed as at 
08.03.21

Change 
from this 
time last 

year

Target %

Kirklees* 156543 289832 54.0%            
Care Home Residents 2753 3661 75.2% 77.9% 1877 2409 77.9% -2.7% 75%
Age 65+ 64504 79673 81.0% 81.6% 61219 75010 81.6% -0.7% 85%
Age 50-64 43445 82071 52.9% 31.3% 16553 52804 31.3% 21.6% 75%
Flu at risk 56383 81912 68.8% 55.4% 42050 75942 55.4% 13.5% 75%
Immunosupressed 6649 10247 64.9%           75%
Household contacts of 
Immunosupressed 8385 22220 37.7%           75%

Pregnant 794 4080 19.5% 43.6% 1056 2422 43.6% -24.1% 75%
Children age 2-3 3964 9825 40.3% 46.1% 4885 10587 46.1% -5.8% 70%
School age children 29567 67808 43.6% 56.5% 28719 50875 56.5% -12.8% 70%
Frontline Healthcare workers 6723 14244 47.2%           85%
Frontline Socialcare workers 4293 13012 33.0%           85%
CCG Staff 121 192 63.0% 68.1% 130 191 68.1% -5.0% 100% OfferP

age 53



Provisional Demand & Capacity Modelling – West Yorkshire
Summer Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr

5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24

Demand

AE attendances 

Admissions

Ambulance conveyance

Handover delays 

Discharge

999 Calls

111 calls 

Paeds / RSV (ED/CC)

Critical Care

General Practice

Community Pharmacy

Optometry

Dental

Social Care

Mental Health

Capacity

Workforce

Bed capacity

Virtual Wards

UCR

 Workforce - Three scenarios to consider in 
planning:

1. same as this winter with peak in 
January

2. higher absence through winter 
but no spikes

3. lower absence most of winter but 
then big spike due to flu and COVID at same time 

Below Average

Average

Above average

Primary care demand planning 
underway – expected end 
July/early August 

P
age 54



Kirklees 111 Demand

33

P
age 55



Kirklees 999 Demand

34

P
age 56



YAS Performance – Delivery Board Overview

35

P
age 57



YAS Performance – Delivery Board Overview

36

P
age 58



NHS 111- Kirklees data

P
age 59



Category 1 Response Times

P
age 60



Category 2 Response Times

P
age 61



Hospital handover

Delays are monitored by our WY coordination center and escalated early to the duty operational commander.

P
age 62



Governance & Oversight
• West Yorkshire Integrated Care System (ICS) Urgent & Emergency Care 
Programme Board

• Calderdale & Greater Huddersfield Urgent & Emergency Care Board
• Wakefield Urgent & Emergency Care Board
• Kirklees System Pressures (strategic)
• Kirklees System Pressures (operational)
• Weekly CHFT system Silver call (all partners)
• Kirklees Discharge Group (under the Health & Wellbeing Board)
• Weekly Escalation discharge call
• Contract meetings

ØYorkshire Ambulance Service
ØNorth East Commissioning Support
ØLocal Care DirectP

age 63



Escalation

• Internal CHFT Silver & Gold Escalation triggers based on Operational Pressures 
Escalation Levels Framework

• Calderdale, Kirklees use new Operational Pressures Escalation Levels Framework to 
gauge system scoring across partners

• Mid- Yorks Escalation process uses same framework
• Kirklees Place escalation if needed can be called by partners if it was felt this would 
be useful across both acute trust footprints

• Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and Response utilised  to respond to, a wide 
range of incidents and emergencies

P
age 64



Planning

• Surge & Escalation Plan across Calderdale & Greater Huddersfield (under review)
• Calderdale & Greater Huddersfield  surge & Silver & Gold Escalation
• Resilience Plan (formally Winter Plan) recognising the pressures within services are 
year-round

• West Yorkshire Integrated Care System Resilience plan a combination of Integrated 
Care Board Place plans

• Assurance for NHS England responding to Key Lines of Enquiry
• Additional specific planning for Bank Holidays; joint approach across CHFT and 
MYHT footprints with co-terminus plans produced across acute footprint

• Learning from previous years, seasons and events

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank



V9 
 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2022-23 
 

MEMBERS: Cllr Jackie Ramsay (Lead Member), Cllr Bill Armer, Cllr Jo Lawson, Cllr Vivien Lees-Hamilton, Cllr Alison Munro, Cllr Lesley Warner, Helen Clay (co-
optee), Kim Taylor (co-optee). 
 
SUPPORT: Richard Dunne, Principal Governance Officer 
 

THEME/ISSUE APPROACH AND AREAS OF FOCUS OUTCOMES 
1. Resources of the 

Kirklees Health and 
Adult Social Care 
Economy. 

To consider the resources of the health and social care system in Kirklees to 
include:  

 A focus on the challenges of workforce retention, recruitment and 
succession planning. 

 Looking at the work being done locally to employ local people taking 
account of the West Yorks workforce/people strategy. 

 Consider the implications of service transformation and the creation of 
new job roles in the local system to include assessing any increased risk 
to core services due to the loss of experienced staff. 

 Consideration of the financial pressures on services provided and 
commissioned by Adult Social Care. 

  Understanding the local financial landscape in the context of the shift in 
funding to the West Yorks ICB and place-based partnerships to include a 
focus on how funding and resource gaps are collectively managed. 
 

 

2. Impact of Covid-19 
 
 
 

 Assessing the impact of the “health debt” as a consequence of the 
delays in health screening, cancer treatments, vaccinations etc. to 
include the impact on primary care services. 

 Reviewing excess deaths data 

 Looking at the impact of long Covid to include reviewing the approach 
being taken to support people’s emotional health and wellbeing  

 Assessing the broader impact on adult social care including the 
increased social care needs for older people as a consequence of 

 

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 8



 

2 
 

reduced mobility and access to services and activities during the 
pandemic. 

 Looking at examples where changes to the way that services have been 
delivered has resulted in a positive impact for the population of Kirklees 
to include: 

o the use of digital technology, 
o increased collaboration across the local health and adult social 

care system, 
o new ways of working  
o Assessing the sustainability of new working practices 

 

3. Capacity and 
Demand - Kirklees 
Health and Adult 
Social Care System 
 

Assessing the work being done by the Kirklees core physical providers to 
manage demand and catch up with delayed planned surgery, therapeutics 
and diagnostics to include understanding local pressures; access to primary 
care services, sharing examples of good practice; identifying areas for 
improvement. 

 

 

4. Integration of 
Health and Adult 
Social Care  
 

An overarching theme that focuses on the work that is being done to 
increase the integration of services across the health and adult social care 
sector to include: 

 Considering how local primary care services contribute to targeted 
integrated service delivery in the Kirklees neighbourhoods to include: 

o The work being developed through the Council’s primary care 
network & local health improvement leads; 

o Taking account of the national direction outlined in the steps for 
integrating primary care (Fuller Stocktake report). 

 To assess the progress and effectiveness of services delivered in 
community settings to include identifying models of good practice. 

 To consider the work being done in preventing unnecessary admissions 
to hospital and reducing the numbers of delayed discharges. 

 To review the progress of the work of the West Yorkshire Partnership 
Board and the Kirklees Health and Care Partnership in developing the 

 

P
age 68



 

3 
 

collaboration between the ICS and primary care to improve care for 
patients. 

 To look at the work being developed through the Kirklees Care 
Association and the Kirklees Provider Delivery Collaborative. 

5. Mental Health and 
Wellbeing 

 
 
 
 
 
 

An overarching theme that looks at services that focus on providing support 
in areas that cover mental health and wellbeing to include: 

 Reviewing the consequences of the pandemic on mental health services 
taking account of the capacity in the system to deal with the rates of 
referrals, increase in acuity and changes in presentation particularly in 
younger people. 

 Looking at a Kirklees focused performance report to identify risks at a 
local level to include consideration of autism pathways; waiting times 
for specialist mental health services; performance across the full 
spectrum of mental health services from early intervention to acute and 
specialised services.   

 Reviewing progress of the work being delivered through the Kirklees 
Integrated Wellness Service. 

 To look at the work being carried out by Thriving Kirklees Single Point of 
Access Service to include a focus on Child and Adolescent Mental Health 
Services (CAMHS). 
 

Panel meeting 27 July 2022 
Representatives from South West Yorkshire Partnership 
NHS Foundation Trust (SWYFT) and the Council 
presented details of the work that was being done across 
Kirklees on mental health services. 
 
The Panel: 

 Noted the work being done. 

 Requested a further meeting to look at the work 
being undertaken by the Kirklees Integrated Wellness 
Service and the Thriving Kirklees Single point of 
Access Service with a focus on CAMHS. 

 Agreed that it would be helpful to review progress of 
elements of the transformational work programme 
being undertaken by SWYFT and the Council in 
conjunction with other health partners. 

 Requested copies of the Trust’s Integrated 
Performance Reports as they become available to 
enable scrutiny to have ongoing oversight of the 
Trust’s performance. 
 

6. Unplanned Care 
 

To consider the work being done within the Kirklees health and adult social 
care system to manage periods throughout the annual cycle when there are 
capacity and demand imbalances for unplanned care to include: 

 Looking at the work being developed to shift resources, skills, and 
expertise out of hospital and into the community and its expected 
impact. 

 

P
age 69



 

4 
 

 Assessing how to enable and support community assets to make them 
more effective. 

 Understanding the capacity and demand cycle and challenges facing the 
whole of the Kirklees health and adult social care system including the 
Yorkshire Ambulance Service. 

 Considering examples of good practice and building on lessons learned 
from managing previous periods of demand. 
 

7. Maternity Services 
 

To review local maternity services in light of the Ockendon report to 
include: 

 Assessing the work being done to implement the recommended actions 
to improve care and safety in Maternity Services in Kirklees. 

 Taking account of the work being done by the West Yorkshire Local 
Maternity System. 

 Reviewing the impact of staffing pressures on the provision of services 
delivered by Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust.    
 

 

8. Access to dentistry To assess commissioning for NHS dentistry that is moving from NHS England 
to West Yorkshire ICB from October 2022 (shadow delegation until formal 
transfer in April 2023) to include: 

 Considering how to support access for people with vulnerabilities. 

 Considering access to dental services for pregnant women. 

 Assessing the resources available in Kirklees and considering ways to 
utilise these resources differently/more effectively. 

 Looking at the work and role of charitable organisations such as 
Dentaid. 

 Considering oral health in Kirklees and the local approach to improving 
dental hygiene. 

 Taking account of the wider challenges in West Yorks and exploring the 
approach to covering this issue by scrutiny at place and/or scrutiny at a 
regional level. 

 

P
age 70



 

5 
 

 A focus on Orthodontics where there is approximately a 5-year waiting 
list for children locally. 
 

9. Quality of Care in 
Kirklees  

Utilising information and data from CQC to help inform the work of the 
Panel.  

 

10. Kirklees 
Safeguarding 
Adults Board 
(KSAB) 2021/22 
Annual Report  

To receive and consider the KSAB Annual Report  
 
 

 

11. Inequalities in 
access to health 
care services 
 
 

To consider health inequalities in accessing health care service to include: 

 Using data and knowledge from a range of health and adult social care 
providers including the Yorkshire Ambulance Service (YAS) to: 

o Understand the demographics and local system health; 
o Identify areas of highest need;  
o Review volumes of repeat callers, understanding the reasons for 

the calls and what the system can do you respond and improve 
support. 

 Considering availability of services to provide necessary support 
including urgent community response, access to GP’s and other 
alternative health providers. 

 Consider travel/ access for residents in areas of highest need for 
planned care. 

 

12. New Plan for Adult 
Social Care Reform 
 

To provide the Panel with an awareness and understanding of the social 
care reforms to include: 

 A focus on the implications of the reforms on Local Authority finances 
and the social care workforce. 

 Looking at the different models of workforce required to deliver the 
reforms and the implications for the local and regional workforce. 

 The impact of the reforms on other council services and the local health 
system. 

 

 

P
age 71



 

6 
 

 
 
Golden threads 

 Public health perspective – Prevention/ Early Intervention/ Inequality (including access)/ Targeted - Universal 

 Patient perspective – Reality of care/ Patient Stories 

 Integrated care – sharing of information 

 Right place first time  

 Understanding key risks  

 What the data shows 

 In context of wider system (WY) 

 Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) – do plans and actions contribute to the achievement of JHWS outcomes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13. End of life care 
 
 

To consider the work being done to support people in Kirklees with end of 
life care to include: 

 Considering the approach to providing an integrated package of end of 
life care in Kirklees. 

 Looking at work being developed through the End of Life Alliance 

 Reviewing the approach to supporting patient choice for end of life care 
at home and the resources available to meet the needs of the patient 
and their family. 

 

 

P
age 72



 

7 
 

AGENDA PLAN 
 

MEETING DATE ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 

27 July 2022 
 

1. Mental Health and Wellbeing 
2. Work programme 2022/23 
 

 6 September 2022 
 

1. Unplanned Care 
2. Maternity Services 

 

19 October 2022 
 

1. Resources of the Kirklees Health and Adult Social Care Economy   
2. Capacity and Demand - Kirklees Health and Adult Social Care System 

 

13 December 2022 
 

1. New Plan for Adult Social Care Reform 
2. Integration of Health and Adult Social Care  

 

25 January 2023 
 

1. End of life care 
2. Inequalities in access to health care services 

 

1 March 2023 
 

 

5 April 2023 
 

 

 
 
 

P
age 73



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of previous meeting
	2 Interests
	6 Maternity Services in Kirklees
	7 Unplanned Care
	Scrutiny September 2022 FINAL v6 (002)

	8 Work Programme 2022/23

